1.  Question:
Recommend that the Govt provide, as part of the RFP, background and historical data concerning the workload and average staff composition for the current contract efforts at both SSC and MSFC that will transition to TOC (similar to what was provided in the previous MSFC solicitation in Section L.16(c) - RFP8-P-EP-00001). 

Answer: 
We will provide workload indicators, but not staff composition
2.  Question:
The number of FTE’s associated with core support for each facility should be identified to establish the baseline from which productivity improvements can be defined. 

Answer: 
Productivity improvements should be proposed by the contractor based on the work content and innovations, not on pre-existing workforce levels.

3.  Question:
Currently, MSFC work scope is somewhat buried in the subparagraphs.  The first step should be to clearly define the scope of the MSFC work up front in the SOW.  

Answer: 
We have edited the SOW to consistently segregate the requirements for SSC and MSFC and will provide a matrix that will further identify differences in requirements with the RFP

4.  Question:
Is there a requirement /interest in having organizational /management equality between the POC’s at the two centers?
Answer: 
Primary contract management will exist at SSC, with MSFC POC reporting to appropriate level at SSC.  

5.  Question:
What type of contractual interface will be required of the TOC contractor at MSFC to ensure proper planning, engineering, and configuration control for test activities? 

Answer: 
We anticipate an alternate COTR located at MSFC with appropriate decision making capability, and existing interfaces with other MSFC contractors are expected to remain the same.

6.  Question:
Is there no “engineering” function associated with MSFC test operations? 

Answer: 
Civil servants provide engineering support.  However, in one section of the SOW, options will be included to provide engineering support at MSFC.

7.  Question:
Does the scope include the stands Boeing currently operates? 

Answer: 
Yes, but just for the support activities and maintenance, as specified in the SOMRD.

8.  Question:
Is the apprenticeship/training program referenced in this section fully reimbursable? 

Answer: 
Yes

9.  Question:
Are there issues of CBA’s among labor trades or technicians, which must be considered relative to cross training? 

Answer: 
It is up to the contractor to determine the most efficient approach to cross training.  We see no value in cross training employees covered by a CBA 

10.  Question:
We suggest spelling out in greater detail what training is required and who the contractor will train at SSC/MSFC 

Answer: 
List of courses offered will be included in workload indicators

11.  Question:
Provide OSHA required safety training for contractor’s own personnel (MSFC only). Since the reference is to MSFC only, is this training provided at SSC by NASA or other entity? 

Answer: 
OSHA training at SSC is provided by a separate on-site contractor and  provided at no cost to the TOC.  

12.  Question:
Also, at MSFC is the contractor to perform own training for overhead cranes, rigging, fork truck, and aerial man lift operations? 

Answer: 
Yes

13.  Question:
Will NASA provide certification standards for specific work functions? 

Answer: 
All applicable standards will be available in the on-line tech library

14.  Question:
Clarification is needed on which codes apply to the welding, inspection, and NDE 

Answer: 
Applicable codes will be provided in the tech library

15.  Question:
Include more information concerning the NASA system used to maintain quality records 

Answer: 
Definition to be provided in applicable procedures contained in tech library

16.  Question:
It is difficult to determine what is and what is not included in the scope of maintenance activities at each site.  It would be helpful if delineation of responsibility for maintenance activities at each Center could be briefly articulated.  The SOMRD and MSFC TC/COD may adequately address this issue. 

Answer: 
The SOMRD and the TD/COD address the maintenance at each site and will be provided in the tech library.

17.  Question:
Paragraph 1.1.1, Does this apply to MSFC only or can this apply to SSC? 

Answer: 
Codes for performance of welding and inspection of NDE apply to MSFC only.  Other contractors provide this work at SSC.

18.  Question:
Paragraph 1.1.1, Section also refers to welding codes and Nondestructive Evaluation (NDE) of structural and pressure piping welding. Are there any requirements at MSFC that the contractors perform NDE (visual, UT, RT, MP) or is this service provided by a third party? 

Answer: 
Dye penetrant and visual is performed by the TOC contractor.  All other NDE is performed by others. 

19.  Question:
Is the contractor required to use, store, calibrate or maintain Radiological Materials (Industrial Radiography) at MSFC or SSC? 

Answer: 
No

20.  Question:
Please clarify the Govt's current schedule for upgrading their ISO certification to ISO 9000:2000 at SSC and MSFC.  Also, please include what role the Govt. anticipates the contractor will have in this upgrade. 

Answer: 
SSC is in process of obtaining registration under ISO 9000:2000; contractor’s procedures will remain compliant and contractor will support audits by providing internal auditors and participating in audits of contractor activities 

21.  Question:
LMSO is currently under NASA/SSC ISO 9001 and 14001 registrations.  Is this sufficient to meet the ISO requirements of MSFC? 

Answer: 
The contractor’s procedures will be audited at both centers as required

22.  Question:
Does the government intend on the contractor to have a common ISO certification for both MSFC and SSC operations or separate certifications?

Answer: 
Each center has it’s own certification

23.  Question:
Please identify if there is a requirement for the contractor to acquire or maintain OSHA VPP Star certification at either SSC or MSFC (or both). 

Answer: 
Currently not a requirement

24.  Question:
Will the contractor support MSFC internal audits as well as SSC internal audits? 

Answer: 
Yes

25.  Question:
Are both centers ISO certified? 

Answer: 
Yes

26.  Question:
What work instructions between the two centers are common? 

Answer: 
None currently

27.  Question:
Please clarify what is meant by “The ISO registration scope includes the contractor” in reference to compliance with NASA Quality Management System (ISO Standard 9001), for both Sites. 

Answer: 
All contractor’s processes will be ISO compliant

28.  Question:
Is the whole paragraph only applicable to SSC or just the portion about ISO 14001? 

Answer: 
Only SSC is currently 14001

29.  Question:
Will the contractor play a supporting or leading role in the preparation of environmental impact statements and site plans? 

Answer: 
Supporting role

30.  Question:
Please describe the difference between environmental services provided by the contractor supporting the Test Operations Contract (TOC) and the Technical Services Contract (TSC).  

Answer: 
The TOC will have to provide environmental compliant operations of test facilities and systems; SSC will support environmental audits; EIS and site plans will be provided by others, which may require minimal TOC support

31.  Question:
Do the SSC and MSFC systems have the same interface conditions or will they be unique to each center? 

Answer: 
Unique

32.  Question:
SOI-8080-0027 is applicable to PTD managed systems (E-complex). For contractor-managed systems at SSC (e.g. HPG, HPIW), will same OI apply or will other SSC standards apply. 

Answer: 
SSC will have one work authorization system as specified in SOI-8080-0027

33.  Question:
Is it the intent of the Govt for the cost accounting to be provided independently to each center, or rolled up into a common product at the overall contract level and presented to SSC contract management? 

Answer: 
Each center’s cost data should be segregated and consolidated per reporting requirements, and into a standard report format presented to SSC contract management

34.  Question:
Will there be separate task reporting systems for MSFC that are consistent with the MSFC TPS and QTPS processes? 

Answer: 
There could be a separate task reporting system, but one is not required.  All tasks at both sites shall be reported according to the requirements in the SOW

35.  Question:
Will all tasks have task identification assigned by SSC or will MSFC assign task identification? 

Answer: 
Each center will assign tasks based on currently existing systems.

36.  Question:
Will task approvals all be accomplished by SSC as the contracting agency or will MSFC have task approval for tasks issued under TPS and QTPS? 

Answer: 
MSFC will have task approval for tasks issued at MSFC.

37.  Question:
Will the contractor interact directly with FAS or will this be a NASA responsibility?  

Answer: 
This will be a NASA responsibility.   

38.  Question:
Will MSFC tasks be accepted and reserved through FAS or through an MSFC system? 

Answer: 
MSFC will be accommodated in the FAS

39.  Question:
Is MASS similar at both locations? 

Answer: 
No, MASS is a SSC system

40.  Question:
Will general tasking/authorization for work at MSFC be through SSC SWR system?  If not, how will general tasking be provided? 

Answer: 
The exact approach is still under discussion.

41.  Question:
Will cost reporting through SSC be for SSC tasking only or SSC and MSFC tasking? If SSC only, where will MSFC costing be reported? 

Answer: 
Cost reporting will be for SSC and MSFC, and reported through SSC contract management.  

42.  Question:
Is the POP center-specific?  Will there be one POP for the TOC effort that covers both SSC and MSFC, or will the contractor support both the MSFC and SSC POP? 

Answer: 
There will be one POP process managed by SSC contract management that includes both centers.

43.  Question:
Considering that SSC and MSFC have separate property management manuals, will there be a requirement for separate inventory control systems for each site? 

Answer: 
Currently yes, but it is desirable to achieve a single inventory system if possible

44.  Question:
Is there an existing govt inventory control system in use? 

Answer: 
Yes

45.  Question:
Can we assume that issuing purchase orders, receiving materials, conducting receiving inspections, and paying vendor/supplier invoices will be part of the contractor’s procurement responsibilities as required by MSFC? 

Answer: 
Yes

46.  Question:
The first paragraph seems to encompass too much scope.  Another contractor provides metrology support at both centers, yet language states “that the TOC contractor will be responsible for the availability and readiness of all parts, materials, GFE, and supplies necessary for performance of all tasks under this PWS” 

Answer: 
Contractor is responsible for everything needed to successfully complete work; in some instances such as metrology, services are provided by others, which requires coordination, integration, specific inputs, and problem identification/resolution by the contractor.

47.  Question:
Please identify (by contract name, number, and incumbent) all current COD propellants and pressurants contracts referenced in this section.  

Answer: 
The propellant contract at MSFC is NAS8-97256 Teledyne Brown. 

48.  Question:
The contractor will need ready access to chemical laboratory services to verify the quality of propellants. 

Answer: 
That service is available from the TSC contractor at SSC and through a COD contractor at MSFC. 

49.  Question:
Is there no operational responsibility for MSFC pressurant and propellant systems?  Only maintenance is identified. 

Answer: 
None at this time.
50.  Question:
Propellant barge dock maintenance was in the TTSC but is not mentioned in the TOC.  Responsibility for this maintenance activity must be assigned. 

Answer: 
Maintenance responsibilities are addressed in the SOMRD.  We expect the TOC contractor to perform the same level of barge dock maintenance currently performed by the TTSC.

51.  Question:
Regarding barges, tanks, and dewars, who maintains certification of storage and run tanks? 

Answer: 
This contractor is part of the pressure vessel certification team, as referenced in section 2.1.1.3.

52.  Question:
At MSFC, are the storage reservoirs, pumps, motor/engines and piping up to the standards provided by others? 

Answer: 
Yes

53.  Question:
At SSC, deluge and fire suppression systems includes overhaul of the HPIW system pumps.  Does this include maintenance of diesel engines? 

Answer: 
Yes 

54.  Question:
We assume that all components, valves, etc. within assigned systems include all test infrastructure, excluding test articles. 

Answer: 
This is a correct assumption.

55.  Question:
Please clarify who will be responsible for performing all calibration services at SSC and MSFC.  If not the TOC contractor, please identify the contract name(s), number(s), and current incumbent(s). 

Answer: 
This service is available at SSC from the TSC, and at MSFC from a COD contractor.

56.  Question:
Is maintenance of components not required at MSFC? 

Answer: 
Removal and installation of components is the responsibility of the TOC.  Maintenance of individual components at MSFC is the responsibility of others.

57.  Question:
Does the calibration and maintenance database at MSFC already exist? 

Answer: 
Yes.  The referenced database is web-based and maintained by NASA, which includes instruments, gauges, equipment, electronic components, etc.  The contractor maintains a spreadsheet for on-stand items, like relief valves, which need to be recertified periodically.

58.  Question:
According to the SOW, the TSC contractor will provide data storage and retrieval, LAN administration, system administration, and all desktop computing services; however, Data Acquisition Systems design and analysis is the TOC’s responsibility.  It is unclear what the TOC contractor responsibilities are relating to providing and maintaining information systems. 

Answer: 
The TOC contractor’s responsibility is to provide design, operations, and maintenance of system required to process raw test data and to participate in the analysis of that data.  After processing, the data is transmitted to the TSC for storage and posting on a server.

59.  Question:
Is it the intention of the government that the maintenance plans for both SSC and MSFC are integrated into one common database, or is the intention to integrate across facilities at a given center? 

Answer: 
Existing system maintenance databases should be used.  The contractor may propose alternate approaches after contract startup.

60.  Question:
Will the test facilities at both sites be provided with base support such as custodial services and building and structure maintenance (electrical, HVAC, plumbing, elevators, painting, etc.) 

Answer: 
Yes

61.  Question:
What electronic system does MSFC use to track and manage all scheduled maintenance in the North, East, and West test areas? 

Answer: 
Plant equipment such as pumps and air handlers are scheduled through MAXIMO, which is operated and maintained by COD.  The contractor should propose a mechanism for scheduling other test stand maintenance.
62.  Question:
Is MAXIMO a govt furnished system that is available for TOC use?  If so, will FOSS provide the TOC access to it?  Will this include the associated hardware and administration support? 

Answer: 
MAXIMO is a government system that is operated and maintained by FOSS and the TOC is expected to provide inputs reflecting maintenance status.

63.  Question:
IF MAXIMO cannot by used by the TOC, please clarify the requirement to “not duplicate” the FOS system.  If an independent CMMS is used, is it required to interface with the FOSS MAXIMO system? 

Answer: 
The TOC should not have an independent maintenance database that duplicates the MAXIMO system.

64.  Question:
Paragraph 2.1 specifically limits MSFC responsibility to operation and maintenance and appears to eliminate configuration control as a task for MSFC.  This and subsequent paragraphs appear to include configuration control as a TOC task.  Please clarify. 

Answer: 
Configuration control is a MSFC task for the contractor and will consist of updating component databases and drawings, based on changes generated by the work authorization system.  The work authorization system will generate TPS, which will direct work that affects configuration, such as removing components, structural mods, tubing and piping installation, etc.

65.  Question:
What CAD software system is currently used? 

Answer: 
Autocad 2000

66.  Question:
Do the documentation services required at MSFC involve procedure maintenance only, as opposed to SSC which includes a wide variety of documentation requirements, such as test data, etc.  

Answer: 
Yes

67.  Question:
Paragraph 2.4, appears to limit the analytical tools and methodologies to those associated with test facility systems (3.2).  Does this exclude tools and methods related to test articles? 

Answer: 
Analytical tools and methodologies should primary include facility and test support systems.  This doesn’t necessarily exclude test article tools, however the focus of this contractor should be on test systems, and not test article hardware.   

68.  Question:
Paragraph 2.4, appears to be inconsistent with SOW 2.5, which includes analysis support for plume modeling and other areas.
Answer: 
In the case of plume diagnostics and prediction, there is a definite effect on test facilities.  Therefore, proficiency in this area is required.

69.  Question:
Paragraph 2.4, There is no requirement for MSFC support in this area.  Who will maintain this information for MSFC systems and what will the interface be with the TOC contractor? 

Answer: 
At MSFC, these functions are typically performed by civil servants.

70.  Question:
Does the function in paragraph 2.6 apply to both centers? 

Answer: 
This is primarily a SSC function, because the MSFC workforce is all technicians.
71.  Question:
Will separate core capability maintenance plans be required for SSC and MSFC? 

Answer: 
The requirement is for one DR that addresses efficiencies in all areas.  Efficiencies created by working across both centers are encouraged.

72.  Question:
Clarify what is meant by MSFC Contract Option 2 to be priced separately.  Does this refer to an option relative to a base period or an option relative to a baseline work package?  

Answer: 
This refers to an option relative to a baseline work package.

73.  Question:
Recommend that "electrical actuation" be included in the last sentence in first paragraph  - “…component hydraulic and pneumatic actuation…”. 

Answer: 
We currently do not use electro-mechanical actuators in our test facilities.  If future needs arise, this paragraph should adequately cover these devices.

74.  Question:
Will the government provide all vehicles, cranes, and other special purpose equipment? 

Answer: 
Yes

75.  Question:
The contractor is required to have “Specialized analytical capabilities …" Does this imply that the contractor will provide analytical tools such as software and workstations to conduct this analysis? 

Answer: 
Tools are both government and TOC contractor supplied, based on the specific application.  

76.  Question:
Paragraph 3.2.1, Does the FOSS contractor provide workstation support with the TOC contractor providing analytical support using both SSC and contractor software tools? 

Answer: 
Workstations are provided by the government, through desktop services (ODIN) or as part of test data acquisition and control systems.

77.  Question:
Will the TOC contractor ever be responsible for procuring components for systems that are installed by the FOS contractor or other NASA direct contractors? 

Answer: 
No; we expect a limited procurement role from the TOC; at SSC, limited to making sure the procurement process is supported with adequate specifications.  At MSFC, see procurement requirement in section 1.5?   

78.  Question:
Who are the “others ” that typically install and certify vessels?? 

Answer: 
The FOSS or other NASA contractors. 

79.  Question:
Is the function in paragraph 3.3.1d accomplished through other contract vehicles? 

Answer: 
Yes

80.  Question:
Earlier language in Paragraph 2.1.1.3 stated that the TOC contractor “will manage the pressure vessel/system certification program.” Does the TOC contractor not install small specialty vessels at MSFC?  

Answer: 
Yes, they do install small specialty vessels.

81.  Question:
Please define “drag-on ” cables. 

Answer: 
Drag-ons are typically custom fabricated, temporary, data and control cables that interface between the facility and a unique test article.

82.  Question:
We recommend eliminating all the data acquisition system exclusions referenced in this PWS. Based on extensive DACS experience, common procedures in this area will pay significant efficiency dividends through DACS process integration at SSC and MSFC. 

Answer: 
In theory we agree with this approach, but believe the contractor should fully understand the processes in order to justify changes to achieve efficiencies.

83.  Question:
Is there an MSFC requirement for activation of test systems?  If so, is there an SOP reference for MSFC similar to SSC-SOI-8080-0041? 

Answer: 
Activation of test systems at MSFC will be lead by civil servants and supported by contractors in accordance with specific TPS’s.

84.  Question:
It is not clear why issuing written work instructions for maintenance and repairs is an SSC-only requirement. Paragraph 1.2 appears to indicate that the MSFC TPS and QTPS will be used by the contractor for work authorization at MSFC. 

Answer: 
At SSC, maintenance instructions are issued by civil servants and contractors.  At MSFC, maintenance instructions are issued by civil servants via TPS and QTPS.

85.  Question:
The delineation of responsibilities for troubleshooting, data acquisition support, end-to-end system checks, etc. in all of these subsections gives cause for concern. Who is responsible for troubleshooting or test anomaly resolution at MSFC? 
Answer: 
Civil servants are responsible for troubleshooting and test anomaly resolution at MSFC.  This activity is conducted in a team environment, with contractor responsibilities defined by TPS.

86.  Question:
What will be the requirements for handling/transporting program critical hardware? 

Answer: 
This function is typically the responsibility of the test article contractor.  Limited opportunities for the contractor to perform this task may occur.

87.  Question:
This section is not clear on whether a firing readiness test is performed at MSFC or not. Does the SSC only statement at the end of the section apply to only analyzing the results or to performing the entire firing readiness test? 

Answer: 
An FRT is performed at both MSFC and SSC.  The analysis of FRT data at MSFC is performed by civil servants, and at SSC, can be performed by civil servants or contractors.

88.  Question:
When performing a firing readiness test, who will do final analysis? 

Answer: 
NASA will be responsible for reviewing FRT analysis, and determining corrective actions necessary to proceed with test.

89.  Question:
Contractor participation in the Test Readiness Reviews at MSFC is critical. In addition to review the status of test preparation, safety issues are typically reviewed and the overall safety of the test process is assured. The contractor must be involved in this activity to ensure the safety of contractor personnel. Record keeping is not sufficient to ensure participation.  

Answer: 
Since MSFC TOC workforce consists of technicians, participation is not required.

90.  Question:
It appears to be inconsistent that the contractor would support test article receipt and installation (Paragraph 3.5.1.1) and test article integration (Paragraph 3.5.1.2) at MSFC and not have a parallel responsibility for this task that involves GSE for the test article. Who performs this function at MSFC? Please clarify. 

Answer: 
MSFC does not typically support tests of flight hardware and therefore, fixtures and slings, etc. are not categorized as GSE at MSFC.  Furthermore, the majority of this type of equipment is not categorized as GSE at SSC either.

91.  Question:
In the last sentence of paragraph 3.6.1, what task does the NASA employee perform? Does this involve adding the requirements not met, or preparing/staffing the report? If the latter, does the TOC contractor support final report preparation? 

Answer: 
The Project Manager usually performs this task, but will be supported by the contractor with tasks such as production of plots, facility performance data, etc.

92.  Question:
Do facilities at either center contain lead paint or asbestos containing materials? 

Answer: 
Yes.  These conditions are monitored and controlled by environmental staffs at both centers.
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